
Meeting Minutes
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, July 10th, 2012.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




John Bernard, Vice-Chairperson 



Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member 




Steven Kessler, Board Member 



Robert Foley, Board Member 
Jeff Rothfeder, Board Member 
Peter Daly, Board Member 


ALSO PRESENT:




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney

 



Ed Vergano, Town Engineer



Chris Kehoe, Deputy Director for Planning  



*



*



*
ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF JUNE 5, 2012
So moved, seconded.
Mr. Robert Foley stated I submitted to Chris some corrections.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and so did I.

With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
RESOLUTION

PB 7-09      a.
Letter dated February 22, 2012 from David Steinmetz, Esq. requesting an amendment to the approved Site Development Plan for the Yeshiva Ohr Hamier and for a revised Wetland Permit and a Steep Slope Permit to eliminate the approved proposed construction of an on-site wastewater treatment plant and permit the construction of an on-site pump station for a sewer line and a gravel service road to access the pump station for property located at 141 Furnace Woods Road  as shown on a drawing entitled “Site Plan” prepared by Daniel A. Ciarcia, P.E. dated February 21, 2012.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I think it’s only fitting that Mr. Bernard has made it back for tonight’s meeting since a lot of the impetus for my client to pursue the sewer line despite the original sewage treatment plant came the night of the original Resolution adoption.  We did receive, Madame Chair, a copy of the Resolution, exchanged some questions and comments with staff prior to the meeting so I’m not certain I have the final version of the Resolution.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked Mr. Kehoe, is there anything in particular…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded there were two items that the attorneys were talking about which I have some suggested changes John, but I haven’t distributed them to the Planning Board.

Mr. John Klarl stated we’ve had a lot of discussions over the last couple of weeks but in the eleventh hour we discussed two things this afternoon and one is we had a condition 7 and condition 7 we’re going to put in a preamble portion of the Resolution and I don’t think Chris has had time to do that because it was discussed after 4 o’clock.  Condition 7 which becomes a preamble reading will say: “whereas the sewer line will be designed with sufficient capacity as determined by DOTS to accommodate residents along and in the immediate vicinity of the route of the proposed sewer line.”  So, that was one change we talked about and the second change we talked about let Ed elaborate a little bit, is condition 11.  Finally, just as we’ve discussed this before at the work session, I think on Thursday night, the applicant was talking about putting in some kind of language as a preamble to the conditions that said that “this Resolution takes precedence over prior Resolutions and if there’s any inconsistency it controls.”  We’ve decided not to add that language but, of course, I’m reminding staff and reminding the Board and reminding the audience that when we adopt a subsequent Resolution it takes precedence over prior Resolution.  We’ve always done that so I indicated to Mr. Steinmetz and his partner today, Mr. Richmond, that I didn’t think it was needed and they understood with my reminding the Board that a later Resolution takes precedence over an earlier Resolution that that would be sufficient.  I think I turn over to Ed for…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked before you get to that, what’s the significance of moving 7 to a preamble?

Mr. John Klarl responded one is going from an expressed condition to indicating what is going to be done.  There’s some question about the viability of extracting the language in condition 7 which will be preamble language which is a condition that the applicant has to meet.  There’s some discussion and there’s arguments from both sides as to whether or not that is allowed or prohibited.  Based upon that discussion we were going to underscore it as a preamble clause.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked which is more important as a condition or as a preamble?

Mr. John Klarl responded a condition means it’s an expressed condition or Resolution.  Typically you have to comply with it and you have to check it off.  You don’t check off preamble language but preamble language leads up to what you do in your approval and your conditions. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated maybe we need to make it even more plain for me.  Does this become a condition anyway even though it’s not actually in here as a condition?

Mr. John Klarl responded it becomes a preamble meaning it’s something that’s said that the applicant is going to do what the Board wants the applicant to do leading up to the expressed approval and expressed conditions.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated this is a little funny to me.  We had a number of meetings here, building the sewer and an important part of building that sewer was for the express purpose in addition to alleviating the problems at the Yeshiva was to also make sure that those people along the route have the ability to hook into the sewer system.

Mr. John Klarl stated and that was expressly discussed at the Thursday work session and that’s where that condition came from.  

Mr. David Steinmetz stated so if I can address it since it comes from us and I appreciate the fact that John and staff have attempted to respond to it as quickly as possible.  I understand you all raised it and let’s take a giant step back; the issue came from the applicant.  The applicant has offered, designed and voluntarily presented to the Town not what we originally proposed which was a 3 inch pipe and an E1 pump system.  At the request and the discussion of the Town we changed it to a 4 inch pipe and a different pump system.  I can give you the spec. if you want to hear it from Dan.  I objected to 7 as a condition because as a legal matter, and you can talk to John about this, the Town of Cortlandt doesn’t have the legal authority to require and mandate that we provide sewer to other people along the line.  The Town of Cortlandt absolutely has the right to accept it coming from the Yeshiva and the Yeshiva is voluntarily offering it and in fact, I don’t think the sewer line shall be designed with sufficient capacity.  It’s already been designed with sufficient capacity.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so you should be indifferent to the condition.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I shouldn’t be…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you should be.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I shouldn’t be, with all due respect Steve, because it’s a pre-condition.  I’ve already offered it up.  It’s a “whereas” provision in this Resolution.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so therefore it’s been met.  By building a 4 inch main, it’s been met.  You’ve met one of the conditions.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated but what you’ve written, what was written here was that “it shall be designed” as if it hadn’t already been and that it’s going “to have sufficient capacity for current and future residents along and near the route.”  We changed the language – I’m not trying in any way hide the ball, it shouldn’t say “along and near” quite frankly, everything in the Town of Cortlandt is near the route.  The more precise language is along and in the immediate vicinity, absolutely.  So, it shouldn’t be “near.”  I don’t know what “near” is.  It shouldn’t be a condition because the Town of Cortlandt does not have the legal authority to require this as a condition.  Why?  Because the law in the State of New York is that you guys can impose conditions on my client’s application that have a direct nexus to that which we’re applying for.  All we’re applying for is to put a private sewer line in the road from the Yeshiva to a manhole on Lafayette.  Everything between us and the manhole was something that we offered to address.  It’s a technicality.  I asked John to try to see if we could address it beforehand.  I wish I had seen this before it was circulated.  I don’t think you have the authority to do it.  It’s a technicality…
Mr. Steven Kessler stated okay, but in my mind the approval – this was part of the approval.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated whether that’s what you predicated your decision on Steve, is a separate issue.  Again, I’m not giving you legal advice.  I don’t think that that’s the basis for your approval.  If that’s what it is, that’s perfectly fine.  You have before you – again, I don’t want to be over technical but I find the condition objectionable.  My client finds the condition objectionable.  It’s like somebody finally does a good thing in the community and you rub it in their face in what I think is an improper unlawful fashion.  I don’t think you intend to do that.  I wasn’t at the work session.  I would have said something to you.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but you yourself had just said you designed it so that it has the capacity for those along…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated absolutely, unequivocally.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so I don’t understand what the issue is.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated because…

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked am I correct in that what you’re saying is you don’t want to appear to be made to do this…

Mr. David Steinmetz responded absolutely.

Ms. Loretta Taylor continued you will voluntarily do this but you don’t want it on paper to appear that we’re making you do this.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded that’s exactly right.  The Chair is right.  We don’t want it to appear that you’ve made us do it.  I don’t think you’ve made us – I don’t believe you’ve made us do it.  I believe we offered it before you had a chance to even get into the fact whether you did have the authority to do it and I absolutely find it objectionable that you’re speaking in the future as if there’s going to be some future design as to future residents.  Steve, I don’t know who the future residents are.  I don’t know where they’re located.  The language that was presented here to me was sufficiently imprecise that we felt we needed to address it.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated the future was if somebody along Lafayette decides, has a lot big enough and decides to subdivide and build a few houses as they did on, what was it; Travis over there…
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it’s the Sampson subdivision you’re talking about right?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it was a Santucci subdivision over there.  I thought it was – Damian Way.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Damian Way is off Lafayette.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so that was a lot they made into a 6 or 7 houses there.  That’s the intent there that maybe somebody subdivides and so where there’s one today there may be 3 or 4…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated you guys have had 4 or 5 months with the submission that we made to figure out who potentially could connect, who couldn’t connect and to determine whether or not you were comfortable with the voluntary offer.  At any time, Steve, the Town of Cortlandt can decide to take this line, upgrade, upgrade the pumps.  Do whatever you want.  You could connect the entire Town of Cortlandt to this line if you desire to do so but what we’re offering to the Town is above and beyond what we originally applied for.  We originally applied for a 3 inch private line with a smaller pump.  We agreed to accommodate the community.  We agreed, based upon what Dan and Ed talked about, to pick up approximately 100 additional homes in terms of capacity.  That’s an approximate number.  Nobody knows with absolute precision and once you start presenting it as a condition I get concerned about absolute precision because it’s a mandate.  We’ve offered up a system.  Your engineer has it.  It’s a 4 inch line, it’s not a 3.  It’s not an E1 system.  It’s a different pump.  We’ve offered it up.  It’s part of our plan.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you’re saying here – you want to voluntarily do this but you also, I think from what I’m hearing, are limiting this to current residents.  You’re not that concerned with whether future residents can connect.  Is that what I’m hearing also?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded no, you’ve parsed it a little bit further than I have.  I’m concerned about future residents because future could be infinite.  You could build a giant townhouse, condominium complex with thousands of people on some side street…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated but in terms of how you’re going to design it, you would design it so that it could take on a particular type of load currently.  As the community grows in the future it might be that somebody else i.e. the Town or somebody else will have to add to this system…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Loretta, the thing is we’ve already designed – Ed’s got it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated what I’m saying is if the load in the future becomes too heavy for what is there then there would be the Town or the applicant down the road who could add to the system and improve it so that it could carry more load.  That’s what I’m saying.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated absolutely true.

Mr. John Klarl stated let me weigh in here if I can.  When the discussion on condition 7 came about after the Thursday night discussion we had at the work session, and I think what the applicant was concerned about and expressed to me this afternoon is that this was a mandate in condition 7 and maybe an impermissible mandate.  Whereas, if you put it in a preamble as something they can live with then it’s not a mandate but they think, as a mandate, it may be an impermissible mandate.  That’s why I said, Steve before, there were some discussions as to whether or not condition 7 should be part of the Resolution.  It should be part of, certainly preamble language and the applicant agrees with that, the question is whether it should be part of conditions that are mandates.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated final analysis, what weight does it carry; a preamble versus a condition?  Do they have to do it either way?

Mr. John Klarl responded preamble is precatory language; language of desire, what you want to do, what the background is.  A condition is an expressed condition; you must meet it and you must check it off or you don’t…
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked and the “whereas” assumes that they’ve already done it?

Mr. John Klarl responded the word “whereas” if it say “will do” has done or will do, whatever the case may be…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked but they not do it if it’s in a preamble?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated in other words, can hold into something that is in a preamble and is not actually a condition of this approval?  That’s what we’re asking.

Mr. John Klarl responded I think the way we would put the language as a preamble, yes.  As to what the understanding is to the parties right now, yes.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated when you give approval you check off that the conditions have been met.  You haven’t checked off that a preamble is met.

Mr. John Klarl stated I agree and I said that to the applicant this afternoon.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is not to say this is what you’re going to do but I mean we need to understand this as a Board that if you’re saying something is in the language of the preamble, technically we can’t force that person to adhere to or uphold – that’s what I’m hearing – as we could if it were a condition…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated time out, time out.  We’ve already…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we understand that you’ve already done it but I think for the larger understanding of how preambles work with respect to conditions I think what we’re trying to iron out in our own minds is that when you say something is in the preamble, technically it’s there as he said, as John has said, that this is what they intend to do.

Mr. John Klarl stated a preamble in whereas are recital of facts leading up to the approval and the conditions of the approval.

Mr. John Bernard asked so the real issue happens to be that the condition 7 is imprecisely worded?

Mr. John Klarl responded no, I think it’s beyond that.  They think if it’s a mandate…

Mr. John Bernard continued and if we were to word condition 7 as a 4 inch line with a certain size pump then that would take care of any future additions to it.  That’s the problem is because legally you would be on the hook for anything in the future, the way it’s written now.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated correct.  So, what we’ve done, we’ve already designed it.  You’ve got it.  It’s part of the plans.  In fact, despite the fact that Mr. Bianchi, Mr. Kessler apparently raised this at the work session, the plans that Mr. Ciarcia designed and filed with the Town that are probably, Chris, listed in here in your early introductory phrases of the materials you got, have the design for the system.  So, the fact that we designed it, submitted it, gave it to you voluntarily, and then it came back at me as a mandate, as Mr. Bernard says, with this extra, slightly imprecise language.  I found it objectionable on a number of grounds.  We can sit here and we can parse the condition to the 4 inch line with the pumps that Dan gives us or we can make this part of the story because that’s what a “whereas” -- the “whereas” clauses tell the story before a Board vote.  The story is; we applied for something and we ended up giving you something above and beyond.  I believe you’ve already got it and if Ed’s ready tonight to say “yes it has been designed with sufficient capacity” then the “whereas” clause would say “whereas the sewer line has been designed with sufficient capacity.”  Because, I’ve got a professional engineer standing next to me who tells me that’s what he designed and that’s what he submitted to the Town.  I don’t want to cause difficulty here…

Mr. John Klarl stated to make it more precise, I added to this afternoon as determined by the Department of Technical Services…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated there you go.  That was a good suggestion.

Mr. John Klarl continued so that it wouldn’t be subject to the will of nil of some individual property owner. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked and those words “to accommodate current and future residents” would remain?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded no.

Mr. John Klarl stated “we have to accommodate residents along…”
Mr. David Steinmetz stated but Loretta note that it just says “residents.”  Residents can be current or future but it…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated no, no but I want to be clear about what’s here and what’s going to go.  So “future” definitely goes.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated let’s remember something.  I don’t want to confuse it but you guys are there so let’s go there.  We’re building a private line.  Nobody, nobody connects to this line until you all decide it becomes a public line.  It’s the Town’s line.  You’re going to go through some procedures that we discussed with you and then you all will decide who gets to connect and who doesn’t.  My client will not decide that.  So, we’re building a private line in the streets of the Town of Cortlandt under the guise and the watchful eye of the Town and the County of Westchester.  My suspicion is, because it’s completed, there may be some other people that are going to be knocking at your door and ours saying “we want to connect.”

Mr. John Klarl stated maybe there’s a middle ground here and that is, if we said “whereas a sewer line has been designed” then it wouldn’t be a mandate because it’s already been done and it wouldn’t be just preamble language it would be conditioned but it would be a condition that’s been met.  So, it would be advisory essentially.  “Whereas the sewer line has been designed with sufficient capacity,” so, it’s not a mandate, it’s not just precatory language building up to it but it’s advisory and we often put advisory language for certain conditions.  Maybe that’s the middle ground.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I just wanted to point out that this came up Thursday night.  We put something in the Resolution as a condition but when you stop and think about it I don’t know how that condition would be met prior to Loretta signing the site plan.

Mr. John Klarl stated that’s why he’s talking about making it advisory.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that that’s going to be so far down the road that we’d have to work out there will be some sort of note or something like that.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s why I thought it should be a “whereas.”

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that condition can’t be met in the short term prior signing the Site Plan.

Mr. John Klarl stated which is almost advisory and we could make the condition turn to advisory language.  I think that would maybe satisfy both the worries of the applicant and the concern of the Town.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked here’s what I want to know because I think I’m kind of glued to the line the way we were given it.  “The sewer line has been designed for sufficient capacity to accommodate residents in the vicinity of the proposed sewer line.”  Is that more or less what you’re going for?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded that is correct.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated okay.  So, that becomes the preamble.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it’s already been done.  It’s already been designed and personally the applicant would prefer that that be drafter as a “whereas” clause as to opposed to – I don’t even know what an advisory condition is but…

Mr. John Klarl stated we do it all the time.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I know you do but I’m not sure what it is.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated when it would become advisory we would add “this is a note to the plan” meaning that it would be added to the Site Plan which always goes in the file and can be tracked but it’s not the type of condition where they’re going to meet it prior to you signing so it would become advisory.  A lot of conditions are advisory.

Mr. John Klarl stated or we could go a level above advisory and make it advisory with also it’s formulated into a note.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated yes so advisory as a note.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked so the applicant could not back down from that “whereas” clause if they should so desire in the future?  Let’s say you say it’s too expensive.  I want to put a 3 inch line in now.
Mr. David Steinmetz responded we’ve applied for it.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I understand but things change, just like this application has changed.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated then you’ll give me a stop work order and you’ll tell me I can’t keep going because your plan – Mr. Steinmetz your client is supposed to put in a 4 inch…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated just as long as it’s got some teeth that we can enforce it.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I didn’t comment on the colloquy that was going on earlier.  Once it’s in the “whereas” provisions I do believe you can absolutely enforce it.  I think you could stop us just like the application would be whereas you applied for a 22,000 square foot building and it’s in the plans.  You get to the conditions of the Resolution, the Resolution doesn’t say “and the building shall be 22,000 square feet.”  You’ve got to go back to the plans.  If I’m not building what are in my plans, you’re not going to let me build it.  I feel like we’re making so much more of this.  The point is it shouldn’t be a mandate because you don’t have the power to mandate it.

Mr. John Klarl stated and now they’re talking about, Mr. Steinmetz, making language read “whereas the sewer line has been designed” and then adding after the language that we’re looking at add “this shall be added as a note to the map.”  At that point it’s just confirming fact and not requiring anything further so that it’s not a mandate.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded fine.  So you want to put in a “whereas” and you’re going to put an advisory note command in number 7?  Perfect.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so read it to me.

Mr. John Klarl stated it says new condition 7 will be “whereas a sewer line has been designed with sufficient capacity as determined by DOTS to accommodate residents along and in the immediate vicinity of the route of the proposed sewer line” and then Chris uses language as “this condition shall be noted on the filed plan.”

Mr. David Steinmetz stated except it’s not a condition.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated yes, but not – and excuse me not to throw a wrench into the works, but we haven’t concluded that it has sufficient capacity.  We’re still evaluating the line.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you know guys.  I don’t think we’re ready to vote on this tonight.  I really don’t.  I think that voting needs to be really kind of – you’ve got to agree on what the wording is going to be and the Board will have to be very clear about what it is that we’re either conditioning or putting into the preamble.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I thought that’s what Mr. Klarl’s comment was earlier about how he put in this language about “as determined by DOTS” so that the capacity determination still has to be made by DOTS, nobody on this Board is going to calculate it.
Mr. John Klarl stated and that’s subject to one single…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked but I guess the question is if he’s still evaluating it and he says it’s not sufficient capacity what happens then?  You’ve got your plans with a 4 inch and he says I need a 4 ½ inch.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked Ed are you evaluating it as to capacity or are you just still evaluating some of the technical things – I thought you guys had gotten over that hurdle.  There were two meetings ago when I was here.  There was a discussion between the two of you about which properties could be connected and which couldn’t.  I thought you guys had gotten that far.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded my staff is still reviewing the capacity and other issues.  We’re not complete with really anything yet.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated so then you can’t say “whereas it has been designed.”

Mr. David Steinmetz stated John’s language was “whereas the 4 inch sewer line will be designed.”

Mr. John Klarl stated “has been designed.”

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that was the modified version.  I’m told we’ve designed it.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated “will” still doesn’t seem to be acceptable and so he came up with “has” but then you’re saying you don’t know that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but if we go back to “will be designed” – because I believe “will be designed” was in your language.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we can live with the “will be.”  We did that because we were trying…

Mr. John Klarl stated but we put “has been” because we thought it had…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we had been told that Ed still hadn’t verified it.  We suggest that you consider a “whereas” clause; “whereas the sewer line will be designed with sufficient capacity as determined by the Department of Technical Services to accommodate residents along and in the immediate vicinity of the route of the proposed sewer line.”  And, if we don’t do that we’re never going to get a Road Opening Permit.  He’s not going to accept the bond.  We’re never going to start construction. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what happens after – you’re putting this – you’re proposing that as the #7?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded no, I’m proposing that as a “whereas” clause and I think John…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated as a “whereas” in the preamble.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked and now what’s going to be condition 7?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded sounds like John wants to make condition 7 “whereas a note shall be added to the Site Plan” that states…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated let’s just make sure that that note is always associated with the actual plan.  
Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s fine.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so it’s going to be a note, not “whereas a note” – “a note will be added.”

Mr. David Steinmetz stated correct, “whereas a note shall be added to the Site Plan which shall state that a sewer line” – at that point the note is going to indicate that the sewer line “has been designed to” because the note won’t come into existence until you sign the Site Plan and you’re not signing the Site Plan until he tells you he’s determined the capacity.

Mr. John Klarl stated like we have notes for hours of operation, that kind of thing.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I promise.

Mr. Robert Foley stated before we’re going to decide on this tonight then what David just read for the “whereas” is like a third version, you’re saying “will” instead of “shall be designed.”  Is there any difference with the language “shall” and “will” or is it semantics?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded no, you can do whatever you want.  You can edit that Bob.

Mr. Robert Foley stated “with sufficient capacity as determined by the Director of Technical Services.”  And, you said “to accommodate residents” and you left out “current and future.”

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I did, specifically about “current and future.” 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked how about – would it be more precise if we changed residents to property?

Mr. John Klarl asked property owners?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded just property.

Mr. Robert Foley stated the issue is the undeveloped lots.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated “to accommodate properties.”  I think that’s a great suggestion.  Whatever you want on that – it’s technically accommodating the properties.

Mr. Robert Foley asked in other words, if there’s an undeveloped property along that route, directly on it, that would include that?
Mr. David Steinmetz stated theoretically, in the future, if somehow computers are able to make use of the sewers without people then it would be benefitting just the property not the residents.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and if the capacity is there.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated there you go.

Mr. John Klarl stated Steve, I don’t have a problem if it says “properties” or “property owners,” either way.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so “current and future” comes out and it becomes “properties” what?

Mr. David Steinmetz asked John, are you sure you still want us to do a sewer line?

Mr. John Bernard responded I think it’s the best.  I really do even with all this.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I, for one I think I can live with that.  Sounds like it has sufficient coverage and the note on the drawing will definitely make it happen.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m going to make a suggestion, even though we decided now that we will vote on it, that we get a revised…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated typically, I don’t give you a final copy of the Resolution but in this case I will.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes, because the wording has been problematic…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated but the Board can still vote on it and he’ll just supplement it with a final version after the fact.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s why I’m putting it in the record.  I think we need a final – we need that because there’s been so much tonight about the wording and we all need to be on the same page with respect to that.

Mr. John Klarl stated just because we enjoy semantics so much we also have a little discussion on condition 11.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked what have you got there John?  Is this something new?

Mr. John Klarl responded it was following our discussion this afternoon.  

Mr. David Steinmetz stated something we don’t know about.

Mr. John Klarl stated I had a conversation with Mr. Kehoe and Mr. Vergano.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it may have been renumbered.  It is the $50,000 combined soil and erosion securities.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it’s 11.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s fine.  Is there a change or is there just an explanation?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded on the seventh line from the top we change it to say “said security shall be extended as required by the Town” – take out “if all improvements are not completed within 2 years.”  So, “said security shall be extended as required by the Town for a maximum of 2 years from the date of the Town’s acceptance of the” not “security” “of the final work.”

Mr. Robert Foley asked “maximum” becomes instead of “not less” then the way it’s worded now?

Mr. John Klarl stated maybe if you read it one more time Ed.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated please read that again.

Mr. John Klarl stated after “as required by the Town.”

Mr. Ed Vergano stated “said security shall be extended as required by the Town for a maximum of 2 years from the date of the Town’s acceptance of the final work.”

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think they want the work, once it’s completed, to be guaranteed for 2 years.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated yes, because in case there’s settling, trenches and we have to rip and cut it out and reset it or – which happens many times.

Mr. John Klarl stated and we can leave it as a condition.  We don’t have to put it in the preamble.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked that’s fine.  Just one question; one member of our team wanted to just make sure that this is, as you referred to it earlier, truly a soil erosion security and a maintenance security.  This is a not performance bond, this is a soil erosion and maintenance security, am I correct?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes.

Mr. John Klarl stated soil erosion we know what it means.  Maintenance means landscaping, safety items, general housekeeping…

Mr. David Steinmetz asked did you all decide that you’re not putting in super…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked why is there a 10 and 11?

Mr. John Klarl responded because of the 7 whether 7’s in or out.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated no but you’ve got 10 and 11 and they say the same thing don’t they?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded well one’s $50,000, one’s for $5,000.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated two different bonds.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one’s for Dodge City and the real on-site work.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated one’s for the off site.  I want to make sure you’re all together on this, you all decided that you’re not putting in super session language in this Resolution but my client’s understanding is this Resolution supersedes the original Resolution so to the extent that the original Resolution had conditions that are no longer relevant because we’re no longer building a sewage treatment plant, we all understand this is the Resolution that would have legal binding effect. 

Mr. John Klarl stated that was my preamble language before we talked about the Resolution.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated just wanted to make sure.  It’s just so we’re clear.  Thank you.

Mr. John Klarl stated the latter supersedes the earlier.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairman I move that we adopt Resolution 18-12 with staff modifying the language as we discussed here at this meeting and re-present the final Resolution to all of us when it’s finished.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated thank you all.  Thank you for your patience going through that.


*



*



*
CORRESPONDENCE
PB 20-06    a.
Letter dated June 18, 2012 from James W. Teed Jr. requesting the 5th 90-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Picciano Subdivision located on Maple Avenue.

Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chairwoman I recommend that we adopt Resolution 19-12 with the 5th 90-day time extension.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 13-05    b.
Letter dated June 18, 2012 from Michael Sheber requesting the 1st six-month time extension of Preliminary Plat approval for the Mill Court Crossing Subdivision located on the west side of Lexington Ave. and at the south end of Mill Court.

Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we approve Resolution 20-12 granting this applicant a 6th month time extension. 
Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the 6 months expires – I don’t have one in front of me, in January correct?

Mr. Michael Sheber responded I think it’s February 1st.

Mr. Robert Foley stated it says January 10th, 2013.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated January 10th it says.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think we decided 6 months from today and in this 6 months you’ll be working with staff and then if you need another 6 month time extension you can come back at that time and ask for another one.

Mr. John Klarl stated and that’s how we arrived at January 10th.

Mr. Michael Sheber stated I want to thank the Board for their consideration and I look forward to meeting with Ed and trying to resolve the issues that remain.  Thank you very much.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you got your request approved.

PB 17-08   c.
Letter dated June 15, 2012 from Fred Tresgallo requesting Planning Board approval of two (2) decks located at the Springvale Apartments located on Skytop Drive.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we approve this by motion.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 9-99     d.
Letter dated June 25, 2012 from Linda Whitehead, Esq. requesting the 3rd 90-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Furnace Dock Inc. Subdivision located on Furnace Dock Road.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairwoman I’ll move to adopt Resolution 21-12 granting the 3rd 90-day time extension.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 18        e.
Letter dated June 26, 2012 from Michael Piccirillo, AIA requesting Planning Board approval of façade renovations at Toddville Plaza located at 2141 Crompond Road.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairman I move that we approve this by motion subject to the Architectural Advisory Committee’s approval.
Mr. John Klarl stated we got just a brief e-mail.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated oh we just got it tonight – then I move that we just approve it.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
PUBLIC HEARING

PB 40-98    a.
Application of John Griffin for Site Development Plan approval for a change of use from a tavern with 4 apartments to an All Terrain Vehicle (ATV) sales and service facility with 4 apartments located at 2101 Albany Post Road (Route 9A) as shown on a drawing entitled “Site Development Plan” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. dated May 23, 2012.

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico stated with Cronin Engineering. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated at our work session, we understood that there had been some few issues with this property over time.  I believe some of them have been pretty much resolved or worked out.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated well, there’s a long history with the property but that’s one of the reasons you’re here is that the 1998 case, the drawing never got perfected.  That drawing was done by Cronin.  It’s the same site so ultimately you would be approving this drawing.  There are other issues associated with the property but they’re not Site Plan issues that were discussed at the work session.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing.  Did you want to introduce the project so that it’s clear what it is you’re doing?
Mr. Jim Annicchiarico stated it’s obviously an existing site.  It’s on Route 9A right across from Dutch Street.  It’s a building that has 4 apartments on the second floor.  It’s got a private storage garage in the back that’s accessed from the back of the building.  My client would like to run an ATV sales and repair shop in the front portion of the building.  The repairs would take place in the south square, the front of the building, and there would be an office and a little show room on the north side of the building at the front.  The Site Plan improvements, if you will, are fairly simple; a fence in front of the dumpster which is at the front of the building, again at the south end, some landscaping on the north side of the property along the adjoining property line.  That’s really simply it I believe the sign above the garage door, which is at the front of the building, and another sign above the entrance to the office and the showroom.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you very much.  This is a public hearing.  If there’s anyone in the audience who would like to comment on this particular application please identify yourself.

Mr. Dean MacBeth stated 3 Allen Court.  I’m just curious – so the same structure is going to stay in place and the hours of operation – it looks like there’s very seldom is there anybody there but changing it to that sort of use where there’s going to be – I know there’s just the gravel yard on the one side and there’s that house next to it – there’s not much sales there.  I think it’s a good idea.  I’m not quite sure what it means to be running an ATV business right there on a garage right there on 9.  I used to live right off 9 down the road.  Is it open all night?  I’m just curious, that’s all.

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico responded as far as the hours of operation go I’m not sure that’s been discussed.  Chris, has it?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no.

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico continued I don’t think anything’s on the plan.  Ben?

Mr. Ben LaRosa responded I would be renting the place and running – hours probably wouldn’t be past 8 o’clock.  No motors running at nighttime or anything, pretty much just recreational vehicles like go-carts and ATVs which is quads, all-terrain vehicles, fixing and parts and accessories.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated what you’re saying it would be about 8 p.m. in the evening; what time would you open up do you think?

Mr. Ben LaRosa responded probably 11, 12 the latest – 11, 12 because earlier than that…

Mr. Robert Foley asked how many ATVs and go-carts do you anticipate in and out of there where – is there sufficient storage or parking?  After repair do you test run them or does the owner test run it within the site, I assume, and how are they delivered if they’re…

Mr. Ben LaRosa responded we would start them up and on the side is a driveway that goes into the back just to drive it up and down.  As long as everything’s good and then we deliver it back to the owner.

Mr. Robert Foley asked well away from 9A?

Mr. Ben LaRosa responded yes, not even close.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and how are any disabled ATVs, are they brought in on trailers or flatbeds or people just bringing them in?

Mr. Ben LaRosa responded pickup trucks.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and Jim, you could address this; there is significant parking in the back of the facility.  The front of the facility doesn’t really lend itself to the parking. 

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico responded exactly.  There is extensive parking at the back.  There is a gate at the back corner of the existing building that I’m sure will be locked at night, but yes there is extensive parking and even though a small area for…

Mr. Robert Foley asked but those are the 12 marked spots?

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico responded correct.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and that would be enough to run your…

Mr. Ben LaRosa responded yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I just want to ask this question because from what I can see on your Site Plan, you have a relatively small area there right at the front along Route 9A.  I want to know whether you’re proposing to put any of the ATVs out there in this small area.

Mr. Ben LaRosa responded right in front where the fence is – probably 2 or 3 right on the side of the fence and the rest would be in the garage but we’re not planning on having 10 to 15 all-terrain vehicles all at once…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated well, I mean 2 or 3 are fairly large.  ATVs are pretty wide across with the wheels and that kind of thing, if you had 3 that would look like, for me, quite a bit.  I don’t know how much space it would actually take up but it seems like quite a bit.

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico responded maybe I can explain it a little bit better.  There’s actually a fair amount of space between the property line and actually the edge of pavement – edge of pavement actually probably goes up passed the property line almost right up to the building, however, the white line or the travelled way of Route 9A there’s a fairly large area between that and the building itself.  A couple of ATVs, I believe, up against the building would be not an issue at all.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated there would be no customer parking in the front.

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico responded correct.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and no employee parking either I gather right?

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico responded yes, we’re not proposing any parking spaces in the front.  All the parking is at the back of the building.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked can we be clear as to whether they’re going to be 2 or 3 because when we’re not real clear about what’s happening then people sometimes end up doing more than we think is appropriate.
Mr. Jim Annicchiarico responded I think we can agree on how many ATVs would be allowed out front.  Just a minute to talk with my client and see what he would agree to or what’s acceptable to him?  I guess I should ask the question; what’s the Board’s thought of how many would be appropriate?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded as few as possible.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated maybe 2 as a number.

Mr. Robert Foley stated the purpose of having them out there is just to store them there or use them as…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I think it would be somewhat similar to whether you’re selling cars or selling motorcycles.

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico responded a form of advertising I guess. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated the reason it’s brought up is that we recently approved, not ATVs, but a U-Haul or something at a former gas station on a main thoroughfare and as I just read the minutes on that application the applicant said there would be no trucks vis-à-vis rentals in the front but you drive by there and there they are and that’s why I think we brought that up.

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico responded understood.  Two or three would be fine with my client.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated personally I would think 2.  I don’t know what everybody on the Board would agree with me but I would go for 2.

Mr. Robert Foley stated yes, maximum.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated 2 is good.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think we would add that as another condition just to make sure it’s clear and then I think, similar to what we discussed before, it would be a condition but we would also add that as a note to the plan because this isn’t always with the plan but the note is always with the plan.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so that would become condition 5?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated something to the effect of “add a note to the plan that a maximum of 2 ATVs may be displayed in the front of the facility.”

Mr. Robert Foley asked so the wording of the condition would be what you just said?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded add a note to the plan stating and then it would be in parentheses “a maximum of 2 ATVs may be displayed in front of the facility.”

Mr. Robert Foley asked and the chain linked fence – proposals for a 6 foot high stockade fence.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated which we want a detail on.

Mr. Robert Foley asked there is an existing chain link fence to partially in front?

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico responded yes.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I wasn’t clear if there would be enough parking…

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico responded it’s all the side.

Mr. Robert Foley stated my concern is would there be enough parking for customers plus the ATVs and I don’t know.  If you end up with a thriving business you may have a problem.

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico responded let’s hope.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated ATVs are not light vehicles are they?  They have to be brought in by tow?  You cannot drive them off the road.

Mr. Dean MacBeth asked there’s still 4 apartments so there’s still designated parking for the apartments alone?  I’m just trying to say because there are residents there who are going to have some designated parking not up front plus customers, plus whatever.  Are they dedicated – they are dedicated otherwise they’ll have to find the street to park.  That’s why I’m asking.
Mr. Peter Daly asked would those ATVs be moved in at night?

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico responded yes.

Mr. Robert Foley stated because you may have a security problem.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked have we pretty much handled the concerns for the members of the Board?
Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion to close the public hearing.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion to approve Resolution 22-12 with the addition of condition #5 as stated previously by Mr. Kehoe.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. John Bernard stated good luck.

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico stated thank you very much.


*



*



*
OLD BUSINESS 

PB 1-11      a.
Scope for an Environmental Impact Statement for the application of Croton Realty & Development Inc. for Preliminary Plat Approval and for Steep Slope, Wetland and Tree Removal Permits for a 26 lot major subdivision, (25 building lots and 1 conservation parcel) of a 35.9 acre parcel of land as shown on a 6 page set of drawings entitled “Subdivision Plan for Hanover Estates” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. dated February 14, 2011.


Mr. David Steinmetz stated representing the applicant.  We received and reviewed a copy of the revised draft scope and have no objections or comments.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked did you get the 7/5 version?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated latest date 7/5.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated in fact I got the 7/10 version as I walked in.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I just wanted to since I’m really shocked that we have no issues with this.  I was reading this scope probably for the fourth or fifth time what with all the revisions, I’m looking at page 14 which sort of cites the possible – actually it dictates the number of alternatives we actually have to take into consideration and I’m looking at the wording and feeling that it’s a little difficult in a couple of spots to understand.  I actually sat and made these little bullets to say this is exactly what would go in there.  Have you seen that?

Mr. David Steinmetz asked when you say the little bullets, is that this?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s this little thing.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is that clear?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I think it’s a good summary of this.  We certainly understand what…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it’s just for the wording.  It doesn’t spell out a, b, c, d, e but it just sort of goes right to the parts that we revised, the bold print and sort of itemizes the specifics…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it would be a formatting issue.  I would change it from paragraphs to bullets on that page. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes, because I think it’s very clear then exactly what it is the Board is requesting and sometimes I think when you’re reading a lot – I was reading this and I wasn’t quite sure in a couple of spots what we were asking.  If there’s no objection…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the only thing I want to make sure because I talked with Mr. Schwartz and he had a lot of comments that he wanted to make sure – and this is going back weeks and weeks that “a version of the buffer shall consist of a minimum of 50 feet.”  He wanted to make sure that you were permitted to do more than that which I guess is sort of obvious but I he wanted to make sure the word – there may be several different versions of the buffers with one having a minimum of 50 feet…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated look, Brad and I have said the same thing to staff and you will recall, I said this to the Board 2 or 3 months ago, for me it’s unusual to see a scope that says there’s a specified buffer protecting these lots when we’ve been out there and from an empirical standpoint some lots may properly necessitate a 65 foot buffer and other lots may necessitate a 35 foot buffer.  Some lots may have trees that are worthy of protection, some lots may not, so we’ve fully, I believe, cooperated with you in how you want to word this.  What Brad has said to Chris, and I appreciate Chris pointing it out, it’s the same thing we’ve said all along.  We’re going to do a DEIS.  We’re going to do a series of plans and I can assure you there’s going to be some dialogue between us on how to properly buffer our lots from Apple Hill, Apple Hill from us, etc.  Unless I’m misstating your conversation with Brad Schwartz, that’s why Brad said to Chris having this 50 in there, that’s fine but we may not just do 50.  We may present an alternative with a straight 50 foot line then we may submit a more carefully crafted alternative in the same section of that alternative where the line moves just like everybody’s backyard is not perfectly the same.  Everybody’s grass line is not perfectly the same.  Clearly and grading is not perfectly the same. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked are you saying you’re coming back with a buffer that may be less than 50?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded in some instances we may ask you to entertain that absolutely.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but one of them has to be 50.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded right and it’s going to be up to us, Steve, to show you why 50 didn’t really accomplish anything and why you shouldn’t be taking away 15 feet of somebody’s backyard.  That’s all.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked which one allows a minimum of less than 50.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded it’s not stated here.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated when it says “a version of the buffer shall consist of a minimum of 50 feet.”  So, a version of the buffer shall be a minimum of 50 feet.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so how do you get 35?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded a different version.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded yes.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked a different version of 50 feet?

Mr. David Steinmetz stated what we’re trying to do is make sure…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked let me ask you this; is it true that when you come in with b, c, d, and e there’ll be a minimum of 50 feet and you may come up with something that’s going to say “by the way guys, we can go with 20 and 25 here?”

Mr. David Steinmetz responded yes.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated fine.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked and is that clear in the bulleted points or do we need…

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded the version is not but we can put a version here.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated basically, what he’s saying is he’s going to do an f, that’s what he’s saying.  If he wants to do that, that’s fine.  As long as he does a, b, c, d, and e he can do f, g, h, and i.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated and we’re going to study 50 and you have every legal power to ultimately end up approving 35 here, 65 there and a meandering line and we’re going to work through that with you.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated you may submit a plan that shows a 50 buffer in one area and maybe a 30 foot in another area.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded correct.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked that’s a separate plan from any of these here?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded we’re going to give you the 50 foot plan because we’ve agreed to give you the 50 foot plan because somebody on the Board seems to really want this arbitrary 50 foot line so we’re going to give it to them.

Mr. Steven Kessler responded and soon 7 people will vote to do that.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded maybe they will – I know this Board thinks much deeper than that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that one’s got to be 50 all the way around, these alternatives.  It can’t 50 here or 30 here.  One of them has got to be 50…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think we need some flexibility at least that was one of my points.  You can’t necessarily have something – and I think I was talking about that with respect you wanted to put that buffer all the way around.  Properties don’t really, as you pointed out, run quite that way so there might be a corner here or a little slice here, that’s going to be 35, 45, 50 feet another might be 75 or 80 feet.  It depends on what we’re looking at on the property.  Again, I trust that you are going to give us enough of an alternative in each case so that we can make a good decision on behalf of that.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Loretta I’m glad you do.  I’m not sure everybody does.  I can’t figure out what’s going on over there.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and you never will.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ll manage.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated we just want to make sure – if you go beyond the 50 foot to something else.  You can submit other plans besides the 50 foot.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated and all we’re doing is we’re making sure you know in advance that we’re going to do that.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated but now the thing with this is it doesn’t take into account without the sports field does it?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded well I would take b, c, d, and e and bullet all four of them and make sure that…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated okay, because 2 of them are without a sports field and 2 of them are with.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated right and 2 of them are with a sports field and 2 are without a sports field.

Mr. Robert Foley asked is Loretta’s bulleted version…

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I think the bulleted version – it’s going to be there but it’s going to be each one of the particular; the b, the c, it’ll be there for each one.  It’s not just for any one of them it’s for all of them.  Do you know what I’m saying?
Mr. Robert Foley stated well, ‘a’ remains the same; has no action, ‘b’, ‘c’, ‘d’, and ‘e’ the wording that’s currently on the scope that we were given, the newest version, would be replaced by these 5 bullets?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded ‘b’ would be a conventional subdivision ‘:’ “no lots off Croton Avenue -- bullet one, no road connection – bullet two so on and so forth then ‘c’ would be conventional with multipurpose sports field and then the bullets…

Mr. Robert Foley stated no lots ‘d’ – and then ‘d’ – cluster etc.  As long as it’s all covered.

Mr. John Klarl asked so Chris you understand your charge?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.

Mr. Robert Foley stated it refers to the biodiversity for the eastern edge of the property the Apple Hill – I’m just looking.  It seems to cover it all.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think so.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it’s just an easier way to read.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are we ready to vote on this scope?
Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we approve Resolution 23-12.

Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just for the record I’m going to change the revision date on the scope to today’s date 7/10 because I’m going to make Loretta’s revisions and then on the last page of the Resolution it will refer to the July 10th version of the scope.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and on the question I just want to say; all the years that I’ve been on the Board I think this is one of the better written and thorough scopes.  You always do a good job.  Thank you.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. David Steinmetz asked thank you all.  Just one quick question; was the traffic data that you were all endeavoring to get taken care of before school was out, was that all wrapped up and are we going to be receiving that?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I know they did the counts.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated they did do the counts before school wrapped up and we’ll be receiving that information in July.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we need that in order to get the DEIS drafted.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated understood.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated David, just at the work session last week we discussed that the Board also gets a copy before it appears in the DEIS.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated whatever.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m just letting you know.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated and then I hope you get it quickly because you’ve changed the rules now, which we’re fine with, you’re now hiring your own consultant at our expense to do the data gathering.  You’ve now adopted a scope.  We want to go prepare the DEIS.  Get us the data please.  If you want to see it first that’s…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we can see it concurrently I’m just saying we would like to see it before it appears in the DEIS.
Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s fine.  Believe me it’s going to take us a little while to generate the DEIS so I’m sure you’ll see it.  I don’t want there to be a snag and the applicant shouldn’t be penalized as a result of the Town deciding it wanted to acquire the data.  That’s all.

Mr. John Bernard stated so we have someone who wants to speak but this is not a public hearing.  This is ‘old business.’

Mr. Robert Foley asked since David brought up the traffic; there was a submission from Apple Hill residents at the work session I pointed out and I believe it is included in here about the traffic aspect?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded was reviewed – we determined that they were in there in the scope already with the exception of the larger clustering issue which we didn’t…

Mr. Robert Foley stated there were two separate issues: the traffic conclusion inclusions…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.

Ms. Marge Parsons stated Apple Hill, my only comment has to do with some of the traffic studies that were done and I know that David had expressed many times to try to do the traffic study before school was out but I know there was one line down where they were counting traffic between Sassinoro and the entrance of Hanover and that was on the weekend of June 16th and then the following weekend June 23rd and throughout that whole week and I just want you to make note that that was exam week so not all the students were in, seniors especially were not in during the week.  Thursday was even senior prom, Friday was graduation not even held at Walter Panas, held at I think County Center.  There were no school events.  No practices, no games on either of those weekends so it really wasn’t a typical week and weekend to do the traffic study in that area.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you very much.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I appreciate Marge saying that and I’m just going to go on the record because as you all know, I asked for this in April and I gave you a heads up to get on top of this so we’re going to take the information you give us.  We’re going to put it in the DEIS.  If there’s a hole or something that needs to be analyzed sounds like it’ll be addressed in the FEIS.  I’m disappointed to hear that.  I hope maybe she’s wrong in some fashion but if I know Marge, she’s probably not.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I have a felling the first day of school will have occurred by the time so we may have a better idea of what’s going on.

Mr. John Klarl stated what you’re saying is if the traffic study’s faulty it’s not your fault.

Mr. Robert Foley stated in the scope there’s an item about comparing it with the Emery Ridge or Cortlandt Ridge studies.  I don’t know if they were done at the same time of year and whether at that point there would have been exam week, I mean that’s another way for Anthony maybe to check it.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it is going to be different.  This is your traffic consultants.  You can bring them in to work session.  You can ask them all these questions.  It’s a little different than we’ve done in the past.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I hope you torture them like you torture the applicants.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and the attorneys.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated as soon as you all have a sense of where you stand on the field, and I know you need some data for that but I just want everybody to know my client feels very strongly that my client is waiting on the Board to take a position on the recreational field.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked don’t we need a DEIS to do that?

Mr. David Steinmetz stated you may not.  I don’t know.  You may get data before – maybe you’ll be able to resolve it sooner.  I don’t know.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I can’t imagine how.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded okay.  Thank you all.

PB 13-07    b.
Letters dated March 21, 2012 from Brian Panessa and Edmond Gemmola, R.A. regarding the construction of 3 temporary greenhouses and other site changes located at the Hilltop Nursery on Route 9A as shown on a drawing entitled “Proposed Site Plan, Hilltop Nurseries, Inc.” prepared by Edmond Gemmola, R.A. dated March 21, 2012.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked do you want to say anything about what you got?
Mr. John Klarl continued and what we need – the as-built.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded well, we did not receive the as-built from the applicant.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we did receive the drawings in time for the meeting.  We got the drawings.  We reviewed them.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated was the overlay issues – he was going to overlay…

Mr. Ed Vergano responded that’s right, we’re asking for – we’re waiting for that.  We did not get that information.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked so you’re going to go back to him for that?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I move that we refer back to staff.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 12-08    c.
Application of Post Road Holdings Corp. for Site Development Plan Approval for the construction of  a 10,350 sq. ft., 2-story mixed use building with retail below and 6 apartments above on a 1.08 acre parcel of property located on the east side of Route 9A, approximately 120 feet south of Trinity Avenue as shown on a 8 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development Plan for Post Road Holdings Corp” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P,C, dated May 24, 2012 and on a 2 page set of architectural drawings entitled “Floor Plans and Exterior Elevations for Post Road Holdings Corp.’ prepared by Gemmola & Associates” latest revision dated May 21, 2012.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we refer this application back to staff.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Robert Foley asked we’re not going to set a site visit until later right?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded right.

PB 23-08    d.
Letter dated May 1, 2012 from John Alfonzetti, P.E. requesting the 3rd six-month time extension of Preliminary Plat approval for the Mountain View Estates Subdivision located at the end of Joseph Wallace Drive and a report dated June 11, 2012 from Town Arborist Trevor Hall regarding proposed tree removals for revised drainage plan.

Mr. John Alfonzetti stated I’m representing Mr. Cipriano in the subdivision.  As you well know, we received preliminary approval it’s a little over a year and half ago now when this finally went through.  Since that time, we’ve been trying to work out the drainage plan.  We’ve had 3 or 4 different renditions of it.  For various reasons things have not seemed to work out.  Our latest revision to you was a storm water pond in the back of one of the lots which required a few more trees to be cut down.  My understanding right now is that that’s not going to fly either.  I’m just here to address that and see if we can work this out.
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated you’ve seen the report from the arborist and he’s saying that 22 trees would have to be removed and they’re in pretty good shape plus other trees would have to be protected during the construction.  Who knows how many more; 10, 12…

Mr. John Alfonzetti stated I know the arborist looked at the layout and what he looked at was the overall right-of-way to access the detention basin.  I don’t feel that 22 would be the correct number.  The right-of-way is actually 20 feet wide.  We only need about an 8 foot path and I think we’d be able to save a lot more of those trees.  I think when I came in here for the work session about a month ago, I stated somewhere around 15 trees, additional trees, most of them back near the ConEdison property in the rear of the property where really were kind of out of the way and is already almost underneath the power lines. 

Mr. John Klarl asked what’s your estimate of number of trees?

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded my estimate was closer to 15.

Mr. John Bernard stated you know we discussed this at the work session and it seemed as if our Town engineer had some other ideas that would perhaps take care of this drainage situation without requiring a retention basin.  Have you been able to meet with him?

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded I have not been able to meet with him.  Ed and I did have a couple of conversations on it already.

Mr. John Bernard asked so you know the direction he was headed?

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded we do and it’s actually the same direction we had about a year and a half ago putting dry wells in the roadway.  We’re still not a 100% sure the Highway Department will accept it, there’s things to be worked out there.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I think in meeting, I think Ed, you were going to broker a meeting between you and the Highway and the applicant.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated actually what I sent over to you today which was a hand sketch basically of the seepage pit type system with a seepage pit clustered towards the adjacent property, that was reviewed with the Highway official and as long as we use a conventional type of pre-treatment unit like a stormceptor or a cul-tek in the unit that we described that would be acceptable.

Mr. John Bernard asked does that help you?

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded it does if I can make it work.  I know Mr. Cipriano is getting rather frustrated with this whole process.  It’s gone from one thing to two other items and now we’re back to the original.  He’s getting a little frustrated with this.  I’m sure I don’t have to tell you.  It doesn’t help.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so where do we stand?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded I don’t think – as far as this concept, I don’t think the Board really cares how we resolve the retention issue as long as there’s no more trees taken down.  Is that correct?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded that is correct.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we can work that out.  What the applicant wants to do at this point – needs to do at this point is to get the sign-off from me sending the application over to the Health Department so they can proceed with their final subdivision approval and get a sign-off from them so they can proceed with the final.  Again, that could happen between now and the next meeting.  If we’re not going to touch any trees and we’re going to stay outside of the right-of-way I don’t see why there’s a need to go back to the Board.

Mr. John Bernard asked so if we refer this back you can get it taken care of?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes, exactly.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there’s an issue here about needing an extension…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated no, you took care of that last time.  That was just left over from last time.  It’s all set.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair, I move that we refer this back to DOTS and bring this back at the next meeting and resolve the drainage issue with the understanding that it’s the sense of the Board that as few trees get cut down as possible.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated actually, what I’m suggesting is that the applicant’s looking for me to sign-off on the proposal so if he can give us authorization to proceed with the design subject to the condition that no additional trees get removed.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it wouldn’t have to come back.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated it wouldn’t have to come back to you.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated so it’s no trees, not as few trees.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded zero.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated oh zero trees, even better. 

Mr. John Bernard stated then you can move forward.

Mr. Robert Foley stated your plan does that mean that there be no trees, is that what you’re saying?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded no additional trees.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated from what was originally proposed.  I amend my motion to approve this subject to DOTS.

Mr. John Alfonzetti stated I understand what we’re going to strive to do; try to get this in without any additional trees and I do respect the issue that we’re going to try to work with the engineering staff here.  We do have the Highway Department and I think we have to satisfy Sells Engineering (Town’s consulting engineer)  as well.  I’m kind of curious in seeing how we’re going to get a final approval without going back and forth.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded John, we can’t speculate now we just have to go through the motions and see how it goes but based on the conversations that I’ve had with both our consultant and the Highway Department, I think we’re on the right path now.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but the big thing, I think the Planning Board involvement, those are technical engineering details that you can work out.  It had to come back to the Planning Board due to all the tree removals.  As long as there’s no big change or big tree removals where you go back to ponds, you don’t have to come back to the Planning Board, that doesn’t mean the Highway – you’re still going to have issues with the Highway Superintendent or Sells– you’ve got to work those out.

Mr. Cipriano stated I don’t want to invest another month and the next month…

Mr. John Bernard stated if you want us to keep you on our agenda, we will.

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded no, I know the client’s frustrated because we were here a year and a half ago at the same exact spot.  Your Resolution, your preliminary Resolution is; work it out with staff and move forward.  We’ve been doing that for a year and a half going back with items going back and forth and we haven’t gotten there yet, we’re still back where we were December 2010.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked I thought the issue was the Highway Department wanted something different?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes, the Highway Department didn’t approve the – in all due respect, the somewhat unconventional proposal of wrapping the seepage pits for water quality purposes and maintaining that, in other words, could be a nightmare.  They rejected that proposal and asked us to evaluate something else.  Using a pre-manufactured unit which separates out a lot of the silt and grease and what have you, it’s a more conventional way of addressing the storm water runoff and I believe Mr. Alfonzetti is prepared to evaluate that with us.

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded yes.  Is there any possibility Angelo could get the letter from the Board of Health after next Thursday’s meeting if everything looks okay?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that’s between you two.  It doesn’t involve the Board.  You should have this discussion before the Board decides that maybe they want you back next month.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so you’re amending your motion?
Mr. Steven Kessler stated the motion is to refer this back to DOTS and approve this subject to satisfaction of Town engineer and then for the next meeting we’ll have a Resolution to give them the extension?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no, it was given last month.  It shouldn’t be on the agenda.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes, we have it here as 6-5-12.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so approving it subject to DOTS.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the extension was given last month but you were also asked to approve the new drainage plan but you wouldn’t do that so that’s why they came back now.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so we’re all clear on what’s happening Mr. Alfonzetti?  

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded thank you.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated in as much as we have no new business tonight.

Mr. John Klarl stated as we conclude our meeting tonight, we’re going to go in executive session to discuss actual litigation against the Town of Cortlandt.  In addition, I’d like to indicate to the public, when you make the motion to go into executive session, that when we come out of executive session we’ll transact no other further business that would be heard by the public and instead we’re only going to come out of executive session to make a motion to adjourn for the evening.  With that, Madame Chair, I would like someone to make a motion to go into executive session and discuss litigation involving the Town.

So moved.  Seconded.



*



*



*
ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we adjourn this meeting.



*



*



*
Next Meeting: TUESDAY, AUGUST 2, 2012

I, SYLVIE MADDALENA, a Transcriptionist for the Town of Cortlandt as a subcontractor, do hereby certify that the information provided in this document is an accurate representation of the Planning Board meeting minutes to the best of my ability.
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